
Memorandum

DATE August 2, 2019 CITY OF DALLAS 

TO Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

SUBJECT 

“Our Product is Service” 
Empathy | Ethics | Excellence | Equity 

Updates on HUD OIG Audit of the City’s HOME Program and Status of Open 
Findings from the 2017 On-Site Monitoring of the City’s HOME Program 

This memorandum serves to provide an update regarding the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) Office of Inspector General’s (OIG) audit of the City of Dallas’ 
Home Investment Partnerships Program (HOME), specifically its reconstruction program, 
and HUD’s 2017 onsite review of the City’s HOME program. 

HUD OIG Audit of the City’s HOME Program  

On March 15, 2019, the Housing and Neighborhood Revitalization Department (Housing) 
provided a letter to the Mayor and City Council on the status of the outstanding 
recommendations that HUD OIG issued in an audit finding covering the period from 2012 
to 2016. These findings assert that Housing did not follow HOME regulations as outlined 
in 24 Code of Federal Regulations Part 92, its own policies and procedures under the 
reconstruction program, or appropriately administer its match contributions. In the letter, 
nine areas of deficiency were identified. As of this most recent update, of the nine 
deficiencies, two remain open for further action. HUD provided a response letter dated 
July 15, 2019 detailing the following:  

 The recommendations for the two deficiencies that remain open are (1) hiring of a
qualified entity to determine and correct deficiencies related to eight reconstructed
homes, including the structural integrity of the homes and (2) the potential for the
City to repay its HOME program from non-federal funds which were misspent
reconstructing homes.

HUD requires that Housing complete inspections of the structural integrity and
repairs on the eight homes related to the Dry Quick project. Due to concerns
regarding the structural engineer that originally inspected the homes (detailed in
the Council Memo provided on July 12, 2019), Housing will obtain a new structural
engineer and a contractor to complete the repairs. Housing anticipates the process
of obtaining a new engineer and contractor for completing repairs to take six
months. Following are the next steps:

https://dallascityhall.com/government/citymanager/Documents/FY18-19 Memos/Media-Coverage-ADI-Engineering_Memo_071219.pdf
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o Post a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for a structural engineer 
o Post a Request for Proposal (RFP) for selection of an engineer 
o Inspect the homes for structural integrity 
o Submit reports to HUD for review 
o Bid the repair work for selection of a contractor 
o Complete repairs on the eight homes 

 
Status of Open Findings from the 2017 On-Site Monitoring of the City’s HOME 
Program 
 
In addition to the HUD OIG audit, Housing has been working to resolve the 12 findings 
from HUD’s 2017 onsite review of the City’s HOME program. Currently, two of the findings 
remain open with a total potential repayment amount of $806,801.28 (attached HUD letter 
dated July 15, 2019):  
 
Finding 7: Conversion of Rental Units—HUD determined that the City allowed the sale of 
single-family rental development units to households that were either not in-place tenants 
or where there was no evidence in the file to support that the units were sold to in-place 
tenants. HUD has asked for repayment of $739,000.26 in non-federal funds to the local 
HOME trust fund account. Staff contests this repayment amount and are providing 
additional information to HUD in an effort to challenge the repayment. 
 
Finding 8: Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA) Project Delivery Costs—HUD 
determined that the City charged ineligible costs, such as case management, to the TBRA 
activity. HUD has asked for repayment of $67,801.02 in non-federal funds to the local 
HOME trust fund account. Staff will make this payment to the local HOME trust fund 
account and will reuse these funds for future affordable housing activities. These 
funds are available through 2024.   
 
Housing will continue to work with HUD to close the remaining recommendations from 
the audit of the Home Program and provide additional information to reduce remaining 
repayment amounts. We will keep the Council abreast of our progress and update you 
throughout the process. Once Council Committees are established, we will brief the 
appropriate Committee on the status of audits conducted in the past three years.  
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Should you have any questions, please contact Director of Housing and Neighborhood 

Revitalization, David Noguera at (214) 670-3619 or myself at (214) 670-3390. 

)cJJ.Jj_.._...____ 
Michael A. Mendoza 

Chief of Economic Development and Neighborhood Services 

T.C. Broadnax, City Manager
Chris Caso, City Attorney (Interim)
Mark Swann, City Auditor
Bilierae Johnson, City Secretary
Preston Robinson, Administrative Judge
Kimberly Bizor Tolbert, Chief of Staff to the City Manager
Majed A. AI-Ghafry, Assistant City Manager

Joey Zapata, Assistant City Manager 
Nadia Chandler Hardy, Assistant City Manager and Chief Resilience Officer 
M. Elizabeth Reich, Chief Financial Officer
Laila Alequresh, Chief Innovation Officer
Liz Cedillo-Pereira, Chief of Equity and Inclusion
Directors and Assistant Directors

Jon Fortune, Assistant City Manager
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